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City of Gainesville Professional Tennis Contractor 

Addendum #2-1 

ADDENDUM NO. 2 

Date: March 9, 2018 Bid Date: March 14, 2018 
at 3:00 P.M. (Local Time) 

Bid Name City of Gainesville Professional Tennis Contractor Bid No.: RECX-180044-DM 

NOTE: This Addendum has been issued only to the holders of record of the specifications and to the 
attendees of the non-mandatory pre-bid conference held on March 1, 2018. 

The original Specifications remain in full force and effect except as revised by the following changes 
which shall take precedence over anything to the contrary:  

1. Question submittal period has pasted no more questions will be answered:

2. Please find attached:

a) Copy of the blackout period information (Financial Procedures Manual Section 41-423
Prohibition of lobbying in procurement matters)) distributed during mandatory pre-bid
meeting.

b) Attachments A- E

The following are answers/clarifications to questions received after addendum #1 was issued: 

3. Question: 2017 and 2016 revenues and expenses generated at Westside Park tennis facility.
Answer: The 2016 and 2017 Financial Reports from the current contractor are attached. 

4. Question: Categories of expenses Contractor will be responsible for, if any, at the tennis facilities other
than Westside Park.  The Contractor will be responsible for any expenses related to programs 
they offer (if any) at tennis facilities other than Westside Park. 

Answer: The Contractor will also be responsible for any minor maintenance above and beyond the level 
of service currently provided by the City at these facilities, if the Contractor chooses to maintain 
a higher maintenance standard  

5. Question: Number of annual passes in 2016 and 2017.
Answer: The City does not require this information from the current Contractor.

6. Question: Current rate for an annual pass, court rental, group lesson, clinic, private lessons, league and
summer camp. 

Answer: Please see attachment E  for list of fees. 

7. Question: Copy of prior facility contractor’s 2017 quarterly trial balances.
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Answer: The City does not collect this information from the current Contractor. 
8. Question: Copy of prior facility contractor’s 2017 monthly participation report. 

Answer: Participation numbers are included in the Financial Reports, which are attached (See attachments 
A,B,C, and D). 

 
9. Question: Definition of “Minor maintenance” as a dollar amount. 

Answer: No dollar amounts currently assigned. 

 

10. Question: Difference, if any, between the terms “Consultant”, “Contractor” and “submitter firm”. 

Answer: None  

 

11. Question: Total fees paid to the City in 2017 by the facility contractor. 

Answer:  2016: $20,000. 2017: $10,741.66 (Tennis pro’s contract expired in 2017, agreed to stay on a 
month-to-month basis at reduced fees to City until new contract was put in place) 

12. Question: Is any item at the Westside Park tennis facility in need of repair or replacement? 

Answer: Currently working on a total re-lamp project for the tennis court lights. Nets, windscreens and 
roll-dries replaced as needed. 

13. Question: Last date courts were resurfaced and next date courts budgeted for resurfacing.  

Answer: In 2014, Coffrin and McPherson tennis courts were resurfaced. Courts are resurfaced on a 5-7 
year schedule based on available funding. No current plans to resurface any courts in FY2018 or 
FY2019 budgets. 

14. Question:  Is the timing, format and content of financial reporting to the City negotiable? 

Answer: NO. 

15. Question: List of any organized tennis programming in 2017 at the 1, 2 and 4 court facilities. 

Answer: Local middle and high schools use city courts free of charge for their school tennis teams. 
GACTA/Aces in Motion uses McPherson tennis courts for after-school programming. 
Gainesville Sports Commission uses Northside Tennis Courts in late September each year for 
pickleball tournament. 

16. Question: What is the square footage of the tennis pro shop?.  

Answer: 1000 sf total: Pro shop 26.5x20.5; Office 17.5x14; Bathrooms 9x8.5; Storage 13.5x10.5. 

17. Question: Will contractor have access in the summer to a meeting room for children during inclement  

weather?  

Answer: No formalized agreements with City currently in place for access to indoor facility. Current 
contractor in the past has negotiated use of a school portable building during the summer for use 
during inclement weather. 
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18. Question: Do all of the tennis facilities (6) have restrooms facilities?  

Answer: Five of the six facilities have restrooms. Currently, NE 31st Avenue Park does not have restroom 
facilities. In addition, the two tennis courts at NE 31st Avenue Park are currently not useable in 
their current condition; however, should funding be made available in the future to resurface, 
those courts would fall under management control of the Tennis Contractor. 

19. Question:  Do all of the tennis facilities (6) have court lighting? 
 Answer: Five of the six facilities have lighting. Currently, NE 31st Avenue Park does not have tennis 

lighting. 

20. Question: What maintenance responsibilities will the City have to the 1, 2 and 4 courts sites? 
 Answer: Same responsibilities as with Westside Park 

21. Question: What maintenance responsibilities will the Contractor have, if any, to the 1, 2 and 4 courts sites? 
 Answer: Same responsibilities as with Westside Park 
22. Question: Is the City Open to allowing the Contractor making capital improvements by by converting the  

concrete pad of the hitting wall or the racquet call court to youth ’36 courts? 
 Answer: The City is open to receiving proposals for improvements to Westside Park; however, there is no 

guarantee that those proposals would be accepted or approved. 
23. Question: What is the City’s expectation, if any, regarding the role of GACTA and Aces in Motion at its

 current McPherson site?  
Answer: The City’s expectation is that it would continue to honor its existing agreement with 

GACTA/Aces  in Motion for use of the McPherson tennis courts for their after-school tennis 
program. 

 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT:  Each Proposer shall acknowledge receipt of this Addendum No. 2 by his or her 
signature below, and a copy of this Addendum to be returned with proposal. 
 

CERTIFICATION BY PROPOSER 
The undersigned acknowledges receipt of this Addendum No. 2 and the Proposal submitted is in accordance 
with information, instructions, and stipulations set forth herein.  
 
PROPOSER:  _____________________________________________ 
 
BY:   _____________________________________________ 
 
DATE:   _____________________________________________ 
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CITY OF FINANCIAL SERVICES 
GAINESVILLE PROCEDURES MANUAL 
 
 
 
41-423 Prohibition of lobbying in procurement matters 
 
 Except as expressly set forth in Resolution 060732, Section 10, during the black out period as defined 
herein no person may lobby, on behalf of a competing party in a particular procurement process, City Officials 
or employees except the purchasing division, the purchasing designated staff contact. Violation of this provision 
shall result in disqualification of the party on whose behalf the lobbying occurred. 
 
 Black out period means the period between the issue date which allows for immediate submittals to the 
City of Gainesville Purchasing Department for an invitation for bid or the request for proposal, or qualifications, 
or information, or the invitation to negotiate, as applicable, and the time the City Officials and Employee 
awards the contract. 

 
 Lobbying means when any natural person for compensation, seeks to influence the governmental 
decision making, to encourage the passage, defeat, or modification of any proposal, recommendation or 
decision by City Officials and Employees, except as authorized by procurement documents. 
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